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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

HONUS WAGNER COMPANY,
Plaintiff,

V. Case Number: 0:15-cv-61963-WPD
HILLERICH & BRADSBY CO. and

WILSON SPORTING GOODS CO.,
Defendants,

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Honus Wagner Company, by and through its attorney, Elliot Zimmerman, BCS,
P.A., sues Defendant Hillerich & Bradsby Co. (sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Hillerich”)
and Defendant Wilson Sporting Goods Co. (sometimes hereinafter referred to as “Wilson”), both
jointly and severally hereinafter referred to as “Defendants,” timely files this, its First Amended
Complaint, pursuant to the Fed. R. Civ. P., Rule 15 (a) (1) (B) as a Matter of Course within 21
days after service of Defendant’s responsive pleading on or about October 14, 2015, to-wit,
Defendant’s Answer and Affirmative Defenses to the Complaint [DE 9], and further alleges:

INTRODUCTION

1. More than eighty-six (86) years ago, Plaintiff Honus Wagner Company acquired
any and all rights to the Honus Wagner name and brand for commercial and advertising
purposes.

2. For most fans of baseball history, Johannes Peter "Honus" Wagner (“Honus
Wagner”) represents one of the most respected and mythic figures the game has ever known. The

"Flying Dutchman" spent all but three seasons of his 21 year major league career playing
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shortstop for the Pittsburgh Pirates before becoming an inaugural inductee to the Baseball Hall of
Fame in 1936.

3. Honus Wagner Company, now a Florida corporation, was initially formed in
Pennsylvania by Honus Wagner in 1922, after his retirement. To date, Honus Wagner Company
continues to sell a wide variety of sporting good items, including but not limited to baseballs,
baseball bats, and tee shirts.

4. In 1929, the Honus Wagner Company along with the use of Honus Wagner's
name, mark, likeness, and identity, was bought by E. L. Braunstein (“Braunstein”).

5. In 1933, Wagner brought suit against the Honus Wagner Company, et al., asking
for an accounting of sales of sporting goods made in the three years since he had contracted the
use of his name, mark, likeness, and identity.

6. Wagner also claimed personal injury citing newspaper ads indicating he had sold
his store because he was forced to liquidate due to financial distress. He also believed he was
owed $8,000 from sales made and wanted to stop the use of his name, likeness, mark, and
identity altogether.

7. Wagner's suit detailed his successful 21 year baseball playing career and claimed
that his brand was a valuable commodity. Wagner wanted the judge to essentially give him back
his name, mark, likeness, identity, and reputation for his sole use.

8. The final decree, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” rendered on August 21, 1934 by
the Court of Common Pleas of Allegheny County, Pennsylvania, Case No. 3326, July Term,
1933, refused Wagner's attempt to reclaim his name, mark, likeness, and identity. The Court
found that "the right to the exclusive use of the name 'Honus Wagner' for all commercial and

advertising purposes is vested in the ... Honus Wagner Company ... their heirs, executors,
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administrators, successors and assigns.” This was based on Braunstein having bought the assets,
as well as a contract Wagner had signed in January, 1929. The judge believed that Wagner's
contract was clear and that no evidence had been proffered indicating any breach.

9. Wagner lived the remainder of his life in Pittsburgh, where he was well known as
a friendly figure around town. He died on December 6, 1955 at the age of 81, and he is buried at
Jefferson Memorial Cemetery in the South Hills area of Pittsburgh.

10. Honus Wagner Company prospered with Mr. Braunstein and his son-in-laws
running it. They expanded to 10 stores in the 1930s and 40s, which were reduced to seven and
then three after the 1960s.

11.  In 1969, two years after Braunstein's passing, his son-in-law Murray Shapiro
acceded to the ownership of Honus Wagner Company.

12. The company was highly successful and engaged in interstate as well as
international commerce.

13. The physical store was closed March 21, 2011 because of the economy and Point
Park University buying up most of downtown Pittsburgh.

14. On or about the 18" day of May, 2011, the Allegheny County Council of
Pennsylvania officially filed a Proclamation, hereto attached as Exhibit “B,” resolving that:

“... Allegheny County Council, on behalf of the citizens of Allegheny County,
commends the Honus Wagner Co. and the Shapiro family for providing a reliable
and welcoming sports memorabilia store to the citizens of Allegheny County for
93 years. The store became an icon of Pittsburgh retail business, and along with
the Shapiro family, it will forever be engrained in the memory of citizens of this
community as one of the great entities that defines the character of Pittsburgh and
Allegheny County.”

15.  Murray Shapiro died April 20, 2012 and ownership of Honus Wagner Company

was passed to his daughter who then transferred it to her brother Allen Shapiro. At that time,
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Allen Shapiro moved the Honus Wagner Company’s principal place of business to Florida and

has been transitioning the physical store to the World Wide Web. It is now online at

www.HonusWagner.biz.

16. On or about April 16, 2014, Plaintiff filed two applications for registration of the

mark HONUS WAGNER in the United States Patent and Trademark Office (“USPTO”) on an

actual use in interstate commerce (1A) basis. The first application was for International Class 35

as an on-line retail store featuring sporting goods, and the second was for International Classes

25 & 28 for baseballs, baseball bats, and tee shirts. The following are print-outs of the current

status of those applications.

a) PLAINTIFE’S FIRST APPLICATION IN INTERNATIONAL CLASS 35

FOR ON-LINE RETAIL STORE SERVICES FEATURING SPORTING GOODS

HONUS WAGNER

Word Mark
Goods and Services

Standard Characters Claimed
Mark Drawing Code

Serial Number

Filing Date

Current Basis

Original Filing Basis

Owner

Attorney of Record

HONUS WAGNER

IC 035. US 100 101 102. G & S: On-line retail
store services featuring sporting goods.

FIRST USE: 19281228. FIRST USE IN
COMMERCE: 19290121

(4) STANDARD CHARACTER MARK
86253890

April 16, 2014

1A

1A

(APPLICANT) Honus Wagner Company
CORPORATION FLORIDA 3032 East
Commercial Blvd. Fort Lauderdale
FLORIDA 33308

Elliot Zimmerman

4
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Type of Mark
Register
Other Data

Live/Dead Indicator

SERVICE MARK

PRINCIPAL

The name Honus Wagner does not identify
a living individual.

LIVE

b) PLAINTIFE’S SECOND APPLICATION IN INTERNATIONAL CLASSES

25 (TEE SHIRTS) & 28 (BASEBALLS & BASEBALL BATS)

HONUS WAGNER

Word Mark
Goods and Services

Standard Characters Claimed
Mark Drawing Code

Serial Number

Filing Date

Current Basis

Original Filing Basis

Owner

Attorney of Record
Type of Mark
Register

Other Data

Live/Dead Indicator

HONUS WAGNER

IC 025. US 022 039. G & S: Tee shirts.
FIRST USE: 19281228. FIRST USE
IN COMMERCE: 19290121

IC 028. US 022 023 038 050. G & S:
Baseball bats; Baseballs. FIRST
USE: 19281228. FIRST USE IN
COMMERCE: 19290121

(4) STANDARD CHARACTER MARK
86254025

April 16,2014

1A

1A

(APPLICANT) Honus Wagner Company
CORPORATION FLORIDA 3032 East
Commercial Blvd. Fort Lauderdale
FLORIDA 33308

Elliot Zimmerman

TRADEMARK

PRINCIPAL

The name Honus Wagner does not identify
a living individual.

LIVE
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17. At or about that time, Plaintiff discovered that on or about June 6, 2011,
Defendant Hillerich previously applied to register the mark HONUS WAGNER in the USPTO
on an intent to use basis (1B) in International Class 28 for its baseball bat. The following is a

print-out of the current status of that application:

Honus Wagner

Word Mark
Goods and Services

Standard Characters Claimed

Mark Drawing Code
Serial Number

Filing Date

Current Basis

Original Filing Basis
Published for Opposition

Owner

Assignment Recorded
Attorney of Record
Type of Mark
Register

Other Data

Live/Dead Indicator

HONUS WAGNER

IC 028. US 022 023 038 050. G & S: Baseball
bats. FIRST USE: 20141100. FIRST USE IN
COMMERCE: 20141100

(4) STANDARD CHARACTER MARK
85339375

June 6, 2011

1B

1B

November 15, 2011

(APPLICANT) Hillerich & Bradsby Co.
CORPORATION KENTUCKY 800 West Main
Street Louisville KENTUCKY 40202

ASSIGNMENT RECORDED
Julie Ann Gregory
TRADEMARK

PRINCIPAL

The name(s), portrait(s), and/or signature(s)
shown in the mark does not identify a particular
living individual.

LIVE
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18.  As a result of Defendant Hillerich’s application, both of Plaintiff’s applications
were suspended by the USPTO.

19. Defendant Hillerich extended the time to file its Statement of Use five (5) times,
over a period of more than three (3) years after its initial application, before finally filing same
on or about January 2, 2015.

20. Still actively seeking registration of Plaintiff’s mark HONUS WAGNER, on July
17, 2015. Defendant Hillerich, responded to the USPTQO’s first “SECTION 2(a) REFUSAL” of
its application. On or about August 3, 2015, the USPTO issued its second “SECTION 2(a)
REFUSAL” of Defendant Hillerich’s application for registration of the mark HONUS
WAGNER as follows:

“As discussed with applicant's attorney, applicant must submit
contract evidence or third party evidence showing that HONUS
WAGNER endorsed applicant's goods during his lifetime in order
to overcome the refusal.

Accordingly, the refusal is continued and maintained. Trademark
Act Section 2(a), 15 U.S.C. §1052(a); see TMEP §1203.03, (c).
See generally Univ. of Notre Dame du Lac v. J.C. Gourmet Food
Imps. Co., 703 F.2d 1372, 217 USPQ 505 (Fed. Cir. 1983); In re
Cotter & Co., 228 USPQ 202 (TTAB 1985); Buffett v. Chi-Chi’s,
Inc., 226 USPQ 428 (TTAB 1985).

Applicant has submitted evidence from its own website to show
the connection between HONUS WAGNER and applicant.
However, such evidence is not persuasive or impartial. Evidence
from impartial third parties (e.g., newspapers) that show
endorsement/sponsorship of the claimed goods existed during Mr.
Wagner’s lifetime or a contract between HONUS WAGNER and
applicant may suffice.

Regarding applicant's rights of publicity assertions, this refusal is
directed to trademark rights based on what appears to be a false
connection and not the rights of publicity. The earlier attached
evidence appears to show that another party has exclusive rights to
use the mark, but applicant may overcome this refusal by showing
probative evidence of a connection.
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/Q Queen/
Examining Attorney
Law Office 111
571-272-6695
Esther.Queen@uspto.gov”
To date, Defendant Hillerich has not withdrawn or assigned its application and has
several months to reply to the latest said USPTO refusal, supra.
Plaintiff hereby pleads, with the same force and effect as if fully set forth hereat, the

status and all documents at the USPTO with respect to Defendant’s aforestated application

(http://tsdr.uspto.gov/#caseNumber=85339375&caseSearchType=US_APPLICATION&caseTy

pe=SERIAL NO&searchType=statusSearch) and Plaintiff’s applications

(http://tsdr.uspto.gov/#caseNumber=86253890&caseSearchType=US APPLICATION&caseTy

pe=SERIAL NO&searchType=statusSearch and

http://tsdr.uspto.gov/#caseNumber=86254025&caseSearchType=US APPLICATION&caseTyp

e=SERIAL NO&searchType=statusSearch).

21.  Notwithstanding the refusal, Defendants have used and continue to use Plaintiff’s
mark “HONUS WAGNER to sell, offer for sale and advertise Defendants’ products over the

internet at www.slugger.com, http://www.slugger.com/fullsize-honus-wagner-commemorative-

career-stat-bat/d/1467C1797, and

http://www.slugger.com/search/products?qg=HONUS+WAGNER to customers in the Southern

District of Florida, and more generally, throughout the United States and the world. Additionally,
the very same products sold, offered for sale, and/or advertised by Defendants’ at the foregoing
websites listed under “HONUS WAGNER” are sold, offered for sale, and/or advertised at brick
and mortar stores here in the Southern District of Florida, and, more generally, throughout the

United States and the world.
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22.  As aresult thereof, Plaintiff Honus Wagner Company filed this action.

23.  This action is necessary to stop Defendants’ use of infringing marks and to
prevent any further harm to Honus Wagner Company’s reputation and the good will associated
with its marks. It is also necessary to redress confusion in the marketplace and among the trade.

24.  Accordingly, in this action, Plaintiff Honus Wagner Company seeks relief for 1)
Unfair Competition under 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a) of the Lanham Act; ii) False Advertising under 15
U.S.C. § 1125(a) of the Lanham Act; iii) Trademark Dilution by Blurring under 15 U.S.C. §
1125(c) of the Lanham Act; iv) Trademark infringement under Florida Common Law; v) Unfair
Competition under Florida Common Law; and vi) Violation of the Florida Deceptive and Unfair
Trade Practices Act, Fla. Stat. §501.204 et seq.

25. This action seeks damages, treble damages, statutory damages, lost profits,
Defendants’ profits, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and costs, prejudgment interest, and
injunctive relief to permanently enjoin Defendants from their ongoing unlawful activities.

THE PARTIES

26.  Defendant Hillerich & Bradsby Co. is a Kentucky corporation with its principal
place of business at P O Box 35700, 800 W Main St, Louisville, KY 40232. The registered agent
of record for service of process is National Registered Agents, Inc., 306 W. Main Street, Suite
512, Frankfort, KY 40601.

27.  Defendant Wilson Sporting Goods Co. is an Illinois corporation with its principal
place of business at 8750 West Bryn Mawr Avenue, Chicago, IL 60631. The registered agent of
record for service of process is CT Corporation System, 208 South LaSalle St., Suite 814,
Chicago, IL 60604.

28.  Plaintiff Honus Wagner Company is a Florida corporation with its principal place
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of business at 3032 East Commercial Blvd., Fort Lauderdale, FL 33308.

29.  Defendant Hillerich & Bradsby Co. has at all material times hereto been and is
presently listed as the applicant/owner according to the USPTO records of Application Serial No.
85339375 for the mark HONUS WAGNER, supra.

30.  Defendant Hillerich & Bradsby Co. is asserted to be the owner of the HONUS

WAGNER trademarks appearing on www.slugger.com,

http://www.slugger.com/search/products?q=HONUS+WAGNER, and

http://www.slugger.com/fullsize-honus-wagner-commemorative-career-stat-bat/d/1467C1797

websites, where Defendants market their goods and services. See Exhibits “C” and “D.”
Additionally, each and every page on the aforementioned websites bears the following copyright
notice: “© Copyright 2015 Hillerich & Bradsby, All Rights Reserved”

31. Prior to April 15, 2015, Defendant Hillerich is asserted to be the owner of the

domain names www.slugger.com, www.sluggergifts.com,

http://www.slugger.com/search/products?q=HONUS+WAGNER, and

http://www.slugger.com/fullsize-honus-wagner-commemorative-career-stat-bat/d/1467C1797,

that are interactive, commercial websites where Defendants market, sell, offer for sale and
advertise their goods and services, which Plaintiff alleges infringe its mark “HONUS
WAGNER.”

32.  After April 15, 2015, Wilson Sporting Goods Co. is asserted to be the owner of

the domain names www.slugger.com, www.sluggergifts.com,

http://www.slugger.com/search/products?qg=HONUS+WAGNER and

http://www.slugger.com/fullsize-honus-wagner-commemorative-career-stat-bat/d/1467C1797,

that are interactive, commercial websites where Defendants market, sell, offer for sale and

10
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advertise their goods and services, which Plaintiff alleges infringe its mark “HONUS
WAGNER.”

33.  Upon information and belief, Defendants have entered into an agreement with
respect to the mark Louisville Slugger. Newspaper articles contend that Defendant Wilson
acquired rights to Louisville Slugger from Defendant Hillerich for approximately Seventy
Million Dollars ($70,000,000.00). Although Plaintiff is not privy to said agreement, upon
information and belief, Defendants are partners with respect to the manufacture and distribution
of Louisville Slugger bats (Wilson allegedly exclusively distributing bats manufactured by
Hillerich, who, in turn, would exclusively manufacture same for Wilson). Upon information and
belief, Defendant Hillerich retains trademarks and copyrights as is evidenced by its above
referenced live application for trademark of HONUS WAGNER and its above referenced
copyright notice (“© Copyright 2015 Hillerich & Bradsby, All Rights Reserved”) on each and

every page of www.slugger.com,

http://www.slugger.com/search/products?qg=HONUS+WAGNER and

http://www.slugger.com/fullsize-honus-wagner-commemorative-career-stat-bat/d/1467C1797.

See 9 30, supra. Plaintiff contends that in all respects, Defendants act in concert with respect to
Louisville Slugger.

JURISDICTION

34. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Title 28
U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1332, 1338, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 1121 and 1125 et seq. because this Complaint
alleges violations of federal law under the Lanham Act. This Court has jurisdiction over
Plaintiff’s state law claims under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1338(b) and 1367.

35. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants under Fla. Stat. § 48.193 (1)

11
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because they operate, conduct, engage in, or carry on a business or business venture in this state
or have offices or agencies in this state.

36. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants under Fla. Stat. § 48.193 (2)
because the tortious actions alleged occurred in Florida, including without limitation, by and
through their sales, solicitations, advertisements here and through the websites

www.slugger.com, www.sluggergifts.com,

http://www.slugger.com/search/products?g=HONUS+WAGNER, and

http://www.slugger.com/fullsize-honus-wagner-commemorative-career-stat-bat/d/1467C1797.

37. This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendants under Fla. Stat. §§ 48.193
(6) (a) & (b) because the tortious actions alleged, including without limitation, by and through
their sales, solicitations, advertisements and through brick and mortar stores and the websites

www.slugger.com, www.sluggergifts.com,

http://www.slugger.com/search/products?g=HONUS+WAGNER, and

http://www.slugger.com/fullsize-honus-wagner-commemorative-career-stat-bat/d/1467C1797,

caused injury to persons or property within this state arising out of an act or omission by the
Defendants outside this state, and at or about the time of the injury, either:

a. The Defendants were engaged in solicitation or service activities within this
state; or

b. Products, materials, or things processed, serviced, or manufactured by the
Defendants anywhere were used or consumed within this state in the ordinary
course of commerce, trade, or use.
VENUE
38.  Venue is proper in this District pursuant to § 28 U.S.C. 1391 (b) (2) because a

substantial part of the events or omissions giving rise to the claim occurred here, or a substantial

part of property that is the subject of the action is situated here. Plaintiff is aware of sales made

12
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over the internet and brick and mortar stores in this District of products listed under “HONUS
WAGNER?” at Defendants’ websites listed in 9 21, supra. See Affidavit of Mitchell T. McRae,
Esq. hereto attached as Exhibit “E” and Affidavit of Mark P. Bockstein, Esq. attached hereto as
Exhibit “F.” Additionally, the products listed at Defendants’ aforementioned websites under
“HONUS WAGNER?” are not only sold, offered for sale, and/or advertised over the internet by
Defendants, but also at brick and mortar stores (Sports Authority, Dick’s Sporting Goods, and
more) located in this District, throughout Florida, the United States, and the world. See Exhibit
“G.” Defendant Hillerich admits selling six (6) bats under “HONUS WAGNER.” See
Declaration of Anne Jewell [DE 8-2, 9 6].

39.  Alternatively, if there is no district in which this action may otherwise be brought
as provided under § 28 U.S.C. 1391 (b) (1) or (2), venue is proper in this District pursuant to §
28 U.S.C. 1391 (b) (3) because, as aforesaid, supra, Defendants are subject to this Court’s
personal jurisdiction with respect to this action.

HONUS WAGNER COMPANY WORLD REKNOWN FAMOUS SPORTING
GOODS COMPANY

40.  Honus Wagner Company provides education and information to consumers, as
well as product consultants to assist consumers in the field of sporting goods.

41. Honus Wagner Company is continuously developing new products and services,
and continues to expand its offerings.

42. As Honus Wagner Company’s business grows, it also protects and actively
polices its trademarks and other intellectual property.

43.  Honus Wagner Company has applied for the marks listed in paragraph 16 supra at
the USPTO.

44. Honus Wagner Company continuously uses the trade name “HONUS

13
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WAGNER.” This is also a trademark and service mark that is protected under the Lanham Act
and common law.
45. Honus Wagner Company owns and uses the internet domain

www.HonusWagner.biz in addition to other domain names incorporating its brand.

46. Since its inception, Honus Wagner Company has made systematic and continuous
use of these trademarks, service marks, trade names, and domain names (collectively “Honus
Wagner Company Marks,” and/or “Honus Wagner Company’s Marks” and/or “Marks” and/or
“Mark”) throughout the United States, including the Southern District of Florida.

47. Honus Wagner Company has invested substantial sums to market its goods and
services under the Honus Wagner Company Marks to a broad general market across the US. It
advertises online, in print, through affiliate networks, by email marketing campaigns, sample
programs, and special promotions.

48. Through these successful marketing efforts and extensive sales across the US, the
Honus Wagner Company Marks have become distinctive and are immediately associated by the
consuming public with Honus Wagner Company.

49.  Prior to Defendants’ recent entry into the market, the Honus Wagner Company
Marks had become famous as a result of their distinctiveness, the duration and extent of their use
in interstate commerce, the extent of the advertising and publicity that employed the Honus
Wagner Company Marks, the geographic scope of the advertising and publicity, the volume and
geographic extent of the sales of goods and services under the Honus Wagner Company Marks.

50.  Because of Honus Wagner Company’s status as an innovator in the industry, its
reputation for quality products and services, and its distinctive Honus Wagner Company Marks,

these Honus Wagner Company Marks have built up tremendous good will and are of significant

14
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value.

51.  Sometime in 2015, after Honus Wagner Company was well established in the
industry, Defendants took Honus Wagner Company’s distinctive and famous HONUS
WAGNER Marks and began marketing similar products and services under same. In support
thereof, the following are excerpts from Defendants’ web pages (as screen shot on or about
November 17, 2015). The entire pages are attached hereto as Exhibits “C” and “D.”

The Uniform Resource Locator (“URL”), aka web address, for Defendants’ interactive
commercial web page offering for sale the infringing bat pictured below is:

http://www.slugger.com/fullsize-honus-wagner-commemorative-career-stat-bat/d/1467C1797

\sﬁ\_T_E Stig WMLE Carser Final Stats, GEMNUINE  WATT
@'—_ MADE BY — 043 Eouisyille Colonels 1n;;; 1329} HONUS WAGNER
= ﬁl Pittshurgh Prmtes 100 - 197 i =
J('F' HILLERICH & SON e 2,494 Games Played - 3,420 Hits ok j:;;“;:’ﬁ"'"
Gwsv LE %‘4' > 11 Home P - 1,733 Rung Babed In i AL Z
Ex -\Tr_p‘_,:”,;,‘_;\ = 43 Dovhles - 252 Teiglas - 723 Stokeyy Basas LOLNSVILLE SLUGGER

The URL for Defendants’ interactive commercial web page offering the 185 products
matching “HONUS WAGNER” excerpted picture below is:

http://www.slugger.com/search/products?qg=HONUS+WAGNER

15
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i+ f t SignUp For Emai  BalWarranly 2015 Bal Registration

SI LOUlSVlLLE Sonin  Track Order W ()
u%er BASEBALL FASTPITCH SLOW PITCH CUSTOM PRODUCTS SOUVENIRS

Search Results For: HONUS WAGNER

185 matching products found.

. B E

180 Ash QUICK VIEW Pro Stock Ash C271 QUICK VIEW
$29.99 $49.99

P SR met o  (— R

Pro Stock Ash M110 Quick VIEW Hard Maple C271 QUICK VIEW
$49.99 $49.99

52. A visual comparison of the two marks demonstrates how similar they are in
appearance, sound, and connotation.

53.  Defendants even adopted a font and colors similar to those of Plaintiff.

54.  Defendants have offered and continue to offer for sale in both retail and online
settings the same goods and services that Honus Wagner Company offers.

55. By adopting virtually identical marks as those of Honus Wagner Company,
Defendants are attempting to trade on the good will of Honus Wagner Company, and to suggest
an affiliation with, or that their goods and services originate with Honus Wagner Company.

56.  Defendants’ online advertising containing the infringing Mark HONUS
WAGNER falsely suggests an affiliation with Honus Wagner Company and its famous marks.

57.  Defendants were on actual notice about Honus Wagner Company’s Marks and
that their use of same was likely to be confused with the Honus Wagner Company Marks since at
least January 20, 2015, when the USPTO initially refused Defendant Hillerich’s attempt to

16
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register the mark HONUS WAGNER.
58. Nevertheless, after January 20, 2015 Defendants continued to sell their products

and services under the mark HONUS WAGNER.

59. Defendants own, control, license, and/or have adopted and continue to use
www.slugger.com, www.sluggergifts.com,
http://www.slugger.com/search/products?q=HONUS+WAGNER, and

http://www.slugger.com/fullsize-honus-wagner-commemorative-career-stat-bat/d/1467C1797 to

market their services and goods.

60.  Knowing that Honus Wagner Company’s Marks are famous, that the Marks have
garnered a positive reputation and have valuable good will, and knowing that their use of same is
infringing, Defendants have willfully infringed by continuing to sell under the Marks and several
variations same.

61.  Knowing that Honus Wagner Company’s Marks are famous, that the Marks have
garnered a positive reputation and have valuable good will, and knowing that their use of the
HONUS WAGNER mark is infringing, Defendants have willfully infringed Honus Wagner
Company’s HONUS WAGNER mark by continuing to offer substantially the same products and
services.

62. Defendants continue to advertise their products, offer more locations, and expand
their businesses using the HONUS WAGNER mark.

63.  Defendants’ infringing activities are both likely to and designed to confuse and
deceive consumers about the source of its goods and services.

64.  Defendants’ infringing activities are both likely to and designed to suggest an

affiliation with Honus Wagner Company’s reputation and goods and services.

17



Case 0:15-cv-61963-WPD Document 10 Entered on FLSD Docket 10/26/2015 Page 18 of 27

65.  Defendants’ infringing activities yielded significant sales and profits to
Defendants.
66.  Defendants’ infringing activities have caused harm to Honus Wagner Company

and its HONUS WAGNER Marks.
67.  Honus Wagner Company has no adequate remedy at law.
COUNT I

Unfair Competition Under the Lanham Act: 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)

68.  Honus Wagner Company incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1-67 as if
fully set forth herein.

69.  Honus Wagner Company has made continuous use of its Marks throughout the
United States, including Florida, in connection with the retail, wholesale, and online sales of
sporting goods (including but not limited to tee shirts, baseballs and baseball bats), as well as the
education, information, and consulting services associated with such sales.

70.  Defendants adopted and continue to use marks that are virtually identical, and
certainly confusingly similar to Plaintiff’s Marks without its permission, consent, or
authorization.

71. Defendants’ acts are likely to cause confusion, mistake, or deceive consumers into
believing that Defendants’ products and services are associated with, sponsored by, or in some
other manner connected with Honus Wagner Company creating a false designation of origin,
false or misleading statements of fact, representation of facts, and unfair competition in violation
of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

72.  Defendants’ infringing acts have been willful and with the intention of deceiving

Honus Wagner Company’s current, potential, and future consumers.
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73.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ infringing acts, Honus Wagner
Company has suffered and will continue to suffer damage, injury to its business reputation, and
irreparable harm.

74. Honus Wagner Company has no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT II

False Advertising Under the Lanham Act: 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)

75.  Honus Wagner Company incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1-67 as if
fully set forth herein.
76.  Honus Wagner Company has made continuous use of its Marks throughout the

United States, including Florida, in connection with the retail, wholesale, and online sales of
sporting goods (including but not limited to tee shirts, baseballs and baseball bats), as well as the
education, information, and consulting services associated with such sales.

77.  Defendants adopted and continue to use marks that are virtually identical, and
certainly confusingly similar to Honus Wagner Company’s Marks without Honus Wagner
Company’s permission, consent, or authorization.

78.  Defendants’ use of the HONUS WAGNER Marks in their advertising is likely to
cause confusion, mistake, or deceive consumers into believing that Defendants’ products and
services are associated with, sponsored by, or in some other manner connected with Honus
Wagner Company constituting false and deceptive advertising, creating a false designation of
origin, false or misleading statements of fact, representation of facts, and unfair competition in
violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a).

79.  Defendants’ infringing acts misrepresent the nature, qualities and characteristics

of Plaintiff’s goods and services and commercial activities as well as Honus Wagner Company’s
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commercial activities by suggesting an affiliation with Honus Wagner Company that does not
exist.

80.  Defendants’ infringing acts have been willful and with the intention of deceiving
Honus Wagner Company’s current, potential, and future consumers.

81.  As adirect and proximate result of Defendants’ actions, Honus Wagner Company

has suffered and will continue to suffer damage, injury to its business reputation, and irreparable

harm.
82. Honus Wagner Company has no adequate remedy at law.
COUNT I11
Dilution by Blurring Under the Lanham Act: 15 U.S.C. § 1125(¢)
83. Honus Wagner Company incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1-67 as if
fully set forth herein.

84. Honus Wagner Company’s Marks are famous; they are widely recognized by the
general consuming public as a designation of goods and services offered by Honus Wagner
Company.

85. Honus Wagner Company’s Marks were famous before Defendants’ adoption of
the infringing mark HONUS WAGNER. Honus Wagner Company’s Marks were widely
recognized by the general consuming public as a designation of goods and services. This
recognition is because of the distinctiveness of the marks, together with Plaintiff’s use, sales, and
advertising of same.

86. Defendants’ use of the infringing HONUS WAGNER marks after Honus Wagner
Company’s Marks became famous causes harm to the reputation of Honus Wagner Company

and Honus Wagner Company’s Marks.
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87.  Defendants’ use of the infringing HONUS WAGNER marks causes dilution of
the distinctive quality of Honus Wagner Company’s famous Marks by blurring. The power and
strength of Honus Wagner Company’s Marks are diminished by the false identification with
Defendants’ goods and services.

88.  As a direct and proximate cause of Defendants’ infringing acts, Honus Wagner
Company has suffered and will continue to suffer harm

89. Honus Wagner Company has no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT IV

Trademark Infringcement Under Florida Common Law

90.  Honus Wagner Company incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1-67 as if
fully set forth herein.

91.  Honus Wagner Company has made continuous use of Honus Wagner Company’s
Marks throughout the United States, including Florida, in connection with sporting goods
(including but not limited to baseballs, baseball bats and tee shirts) and associated goods and
services and enjoys common law trademark rights in Honus Wagner Company’s Marks.

92.  Defendants adopted and continue to use HONUS WAGNER that is virtually
identical, and certainly confusingly similar to Honus Wagner Company’s Marks without Honus
Wagner Company’s permission, consent, or authorization.

93. Defendants’ acts are likely to cause confusion, mistake, or deceive consumers into
believing that Defendants’ products and services are associated with, sponsored by, or in some
other manner connected with Honus Wagner Company creating a false designation of origin,
false or misleading statements of fact, representation of facts, and unfair competition.

94.  Defendants’ infringing acts misrepresent the nature, qualities and characteristics
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of Defendants’ goods and services and commercial activities as well as Honus Wagner

Company’s commercial activities.

95.  Defendants’ acts have harmed Honus Wagner Company’s Marks, reputation, and
goodwill.
96.  As adirect and proximate result of Defendants’ actions, Honus Wagner Company

has suffered and will continue to suffer damage, injury to its business reputation, and irreparable

harm.
97. Honus Wagner Company has no adequate remedy at law.
COUNT V
Unfair Competition Under Florida Common Law
98.  Honus Wagner Company incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1-67 as if
fully set forth herein.
99.  Honus Wagner Company has made continuous use of Honus Wagner Company’s

Marks throughout the United States, including Florida, in connection with sporting goods
(including but not limited to baseballs, baseball bats and tee shirts) and associated goods and
services and enjoys common law trademark rights in Honus Wagner Company’s Marks.

100. Its marks are distinctive and distinguish them from others in the industry.

101. Defendants adopted and continue to use a mark that is virtually identical, and
certainly confusingly similar to Honus Wagner Company’s Marks without Honus Wagner
Company’s permission, consent, or authorization to confuse the public into believing that
Defendants’ conduct is sponsored or authorized by Honus Wagner Company.

102. Defendants’ acts are likely to cause confusion, mistake, or deceive consumers into

believing that Defendants’ products and services are associated with, sponsored by, or in some
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other manner connected with Honus Wagner Company creating false designation of origin, false
or misleading statements of fact, representation of facts, and unfair competition.

103.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ actions, Honus Wagner Company
has suffered and will continue to suffer damage, injury to its business reputation, good will, and
irreparable harm.

104. Honus Wagner Company has no adequate remedy at law.

COUNT VI

Violation of the Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act:
Fla. Stat. § 501.204 et seq.

105. Honus Wagner Company incorporates the allegations in paragraphs 1-67 as if
fully set forth herein.

106. Honus Wagner Company has made continuous use of Honus Wagner Company’s
Marks throughout the United States, including Florida, in connection with sporting goods
(including but not limited to baseballs, baseball bats and tee shirts) and associated goods and
services and enjoys common law trademark rights in Honus Wagner Company’s Marks.

107.  Its marks are distinctive and distinguish them from others in the industry.

108. Defendants adopted and continue to use a mark that is virtually identical, and
certainly confusingly similar to Honus Wagner Company’s Marks without Plaintiff’s permission,
consent, or authorization.

109. Defendants’ acts are likely to cause confusion, mistake, or deceive consumers into
believing that Defendants’ products and services are associated with, sponsored by, or in some
other manner connected with Honus Wagner Company creating false designation of origin, false
or misleading statements of fact, representation of facts, and unfair competition.

110.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ actions, Honus Wagner Company
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has suffered and will continue to suffer damage, injury to its business reputation, good will, and
irreparable harm.
111.  Honus Wagner Company has no adequate remedy at law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Honus Wagner Company prays this Court enter judgment in
Plaintiff’s favor on the claims set forth above and award Plaintiff the following relief.

a. That this Court find Plaintiff’s Marks have been infringed as a direct and
proximate result of the willful acts of Defendants as set forth in this Complaint in violation of
Plaintiff’s rights under federal and state law.

b. That this Court find Defendants have competed unfairly with Plaintiff in violation
of Plaintiff’s rights under federal and state law.

c. That this Court find Defendants have committed acts of false advertising under
federal law.

d. That this Court find the Plaintiff Honus Wagner Company’s Marks have been
diluted, and have caused injury to Plaintiff’s reputation, as a direct and proximate cause of the
willful acts of Defendants as set forth in this Complaint, including Defendants’ use of marks that
are confusingly similar to those of Plaintiff in violation of federal and state law.

e. That Defendants, and all heirs, officers, directors, agents, servants, employees,
attorneys, successors, assigns, and all persons in active concert or participation therewith, be
preliminarily and permanently enjoined and restrained:

1. From using Plaintiff Honus Wagner Company’s Marks, any reproduction,
infringement, copy, or colorable imitation and any formative variations or

phonetic equivalents, or any term, name, or mark which incorporates any of the
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foregoing or any trademarks similar thereto or likely to be confused therewith,
in connection with the distribution, marketing, advertising or sale of any goods
or services;

ii.  From using any logo, trade name, trademark, and/or URL which may be
calculated to falsely represent or which has the effect of falsely representing
that the unauthorized products and/or services of Defendants are sponsored by,
authorized by, or in any way associated with Plaintiff;

iii.  From infringing, contributing to, conspiring to, or inducing the infringement of
the Plaintiff Honus Wagner Company’s Marks;

iv.  From doing any other act or thing likely to cause the public or the trade to
believe that there is any connection between Defendants and Plaintiff, or their
respective goods or services; and

v.  From falsely representing themselves or their affiliates as being connected with
Plaintiff, or sponsored by or associated with Plaintiff, or engaging in any act
which is likely to falsely cause the trade, regulators, retailers, and/or members
of the purchasing public to believe that Defendants or their affiliates are
associated with Plaintiff and/or that Plaintiff is associated with Defendants.

f. That Plaintiff recovers Defendants’ profits and the damages to Plaintiff, in an
amount to be trebled, arising from Defendants’ wrongful acts.

g. That Plaintiff recovers such sums as are necessary to place or compensate for
corrective advertising.

h. That Plaintiff recovers its actual monetary damages.

1. That Plaintiff recovers statutory damages as a result of the acts of infringement
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alleged herein, as provided for in 15 U.S.C. §1117.

J- That Plaintiff recovers, pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida, and common
law, in addition to its actual damages, punitive damages in an amount which the Court deems
just and proper.

k. That Plaintiff recovers both pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on each and
every damage award.

1. That Plaintiff recovers its reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred in this action,
pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1117, Fla. Stat. § 501.2105, and/or as otherwise authorized.

m. That Plaintiff recovers its taxable costs and disbursements herein, pursuant to Fed.
R. Civ. P. 54 and/or Fla.Stat. § 57.041, and as otherwise authorized.

n. That Plaintiff has and recovers such other and further relief as the Court may
deem just and proper.

JURY DEMAND

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury as to all issues so triable.

Dated: October 26, 2015 Respectfully submitted,

ELLIOT ZIMMERMAN, BCS, P.A.

/s! Elliot M. Zimmerman

By: Elliot M. Zimmerman

1776 N Pine Island Road, Ste. 224
Plantation, FL 33322

Telephone: (954) 565-6996
Email: legal@cyberlaw.info
FBN: 315291
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on October 26, 2015, I electronically filed the foregoing
document with the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF. I also certify that the foregoing is being
served this day on all counsel/parties of record either via transmission of Notices of Electronic
Filing generated by CM/ECF or in some other authorized manner for those counsel who are not

authorized to receive electronically Notices of Electronic Filing.

ELLIOT ZIMMERMAN, BCS, P.A.

/s! Elliot M. Zimmerman

By: Elliot M. Zimmerman
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- Case (;15-cv-61963-WPD . Dotument 10-1.. Entered on FLSD.Docket 10/26/2015 Page 2 of.3. . . .
IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS OF ALLEGHENY COUNTY, FENNSYLVANTA

SITEING 1IN EQUITY.

G - ; -
| 4 4
JOHN H. WAGHER -
va. L i
E. L. BRAUNSIEIN: E. L. BRAUNSTEIN = &~ S . |
AND C(MEANY, INC., a corporation; :No. 3326 July Term, 1953.|
' !

HOWUS | W&GNER GGMBAHY‘ & gorporation; : !
NATTONAL STORES CDHTANY' 2 corporation; : ;
E. L. BRAUNSTEIN AND CDEPAHY’ Ine., : '
brading as UNITED SPORTING GOODS :
CGNE@JEK ST _ :

DECEZXE

AXD NOW, %o wit, @wﬂ 2Lt 1934,

the following .decree is entered in the above intitled gase by

cousent of &l1 the parties thereto:

FIRST ; Thet 211 commissions due, or alleged to be
due, the plaintiff by any or all of the defendants by reason of *

any sales, or any cause oI causes whatscever, have been fully paidi

STCOND: That the right to the exelusive use of the %

name "Horus Wagner™ for all commercial and advertising purposes
iz vested in B. L, Braunstein & Co. Ine., & corporation, E. L.
Braunsteln and Honus Wagner Company, & corporation, their heirs,

exgcutors, administrators, successors and assigns, as appaars hy

Order of Court dated December 28%h, 1988, of Watson B, Adair, Esd.),
Referee in Bankrup tey of the District Court of the United States
for the Western Distriet of FPennsylvaniz, made in the Matter of

The Hornus Wagner Sportinz Goods Compary, & Delaware Corporation,

Bankrupt, &t No. 14400 In Bankruptey, and fﬁrther ag acknowledded

T8/T8 HFowd BBEST 3IDIH440 x3d34 EBFEE9SPSE EBIZT ETBZ/8Z/20
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Ta/Te  388d

in the written agreement between John H. Wagrer znd ®. L.

Braunstein, to the said same effect, dated Jgouary 2lst,.]1929:

/
“Lf”% [Mme& % ng“*--

Attorneygfor JORT H. Wagner ¢

”<‘- A K/é/fmm ]
Etforney Tor E IJ Braunstein, individwally,
arnd E. L. Breunstein & Co.Ine.,
8 corporation, and E. L. Braunstein & Co.lne.,
tradinz ag United Sporting Goods Company.

: .
-~
% Wﬁ’\}
At%orney for Honus Wagggr Company,
a corporation.
40 & v
orney Qr aTi0na ored

Company, & corporation,

CERTIFIED FROM THE RECORD

BEST 3DI440 X3J34 EBPBE9SPSE CcT:21T ETHZ/BZ/CH
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WILLIAM RUSSELL ROBINSON
DISTRICT 10

CHAIR,
BUDGET & FINANCE
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL
119 COURTHOUSE + 436 GRANT STREET
PITTSBURGH. PA 15219
PHONE (4 12) 350-6570 - FAX (412) 350-6499
WROBINSON@COUNTY.ALLEGHENY.PA.US
WWW.COUNTY.ALLEGHENY.PA.US/COUNCIL

May 23, 2011

Harriet and Murray Shapiro
3555 South Ocean Boulevard, Apt. PH 15
South Palm Beach, FL. 33480

Dear Harriet and Murray:

Enclosed you will find the proclamation honoring the Honus Wagner Co. store for its longevity as a
family-friendly business and commending your family for operating the store for such an impressive
period of time. The store became a foundation of our community over the years as families,
children and sports fans from all over the country visited the business to witness its charm and
ingenuity. It will remain in our memories as a landmark and as a symbol of our area. Your family
maintained the business for so long that you too will remain in our memories as ambassadors of our
area’s culture and welcoming atmosphere. I am proud to bring attention to the store’s history, and I
am proud it was a fixture of our community for 93 years.

This proclamation was read into the Official Record of Council during the May 18th Regular
Meeting.

Yours truly,

William Russell Robinson


WWW.COUNTY.ALLEGHENY.PA.US/COUNCIL
mailto:WROBINSON@COUNTY.ALLEGHENY.PA.US
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Allegheny Qounty Qouncil

Hroclamation

WHEREAS, family-owned retail stores in Allegheny County sustain
operations for many years and become symbols of our region by relying on
dependable management, sound business practices and customer loyalty; and

WHEREAS, the Honus Wagner Co. of Downtown Pittsburgh became an
iconic Pittsburgh retail store throughout its 93 years of operation; and

WHEREAS, Honus Wagner, the Hall of Fame shortstop of the Pittsburgh
Pirates, opened the store in 1918, selling sports memorabilia; and

WHEREAS, in 1928, the Shapiro family purchased the store from Mr.
Wagner; eventually, the family moved the store from its location on Liberty
Avenue to Forbes Avenue; and

WHEREAS, four generati